
UNITED NATIONS 

GENERAL 
ASSEMBLY 

D i s t r . 
GENERAL 
A/AC.96/SR.354 
12 October 1983 

Original : ENGLISH 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF THE HIGH COMMISSIONER'S PROGRAMME 

Thirty-fourth session 

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 3 5 4 t h MEETING 

Held at the Palais des Nations, Geneva, 
on Monday, 10 October 1985, at 3 p.m. 

Chairman; Mr. EWERLOF (Sweden) 

CONTENTS 

General debate (continued) 

This record i s subject to correction. 
Corrections should be submitted in one of the working languages. They should be 

set forth i n a memorandum and also incorporated i n a copy of the record. They should 
be sent within one week of the date of t h i s document to the Chief, O f f i c i a l Records 
Editing Section, room E . 6 1 0 6 , Palais des Nations, Geneva. 

Any corrections to the records of the meetings of the Executive Committee at t h i s 
session w i l l be consolidated i n a single corrigendum to be issued shortly a f t e r the 
end of the session. 

GE .83-O3356 



А/АС.96/SR.354 
page 2 

Thg meeting was osuled to order^ at 3 . 1 0 p.m. 

GSîiSRAL (agenda item 4) (coritin-geá) 

•̂ v I-tr. CHIBA (Japan) said he deplared the f a c t that mass exoduses of people had", 
cqine to; be. regarded as routine phenomenaj the only saving grace bein^ that the 
international connnunity had responded thereto i n a s p i r i t of s o l i d a r i t y and had 
. lendeavoured. to. protect the refijigees. After almost. a decade, i t appeared that nass 
outflows of refugees had decreased g r e a t l y j despite the recurrence of incidents 
causing hximan suffering. I t v;aE therefore time to reconsider the basic elements 
of refugee problems and to find a dtirable solution. 

2. His Government had recently reaffirmed i t s coramitment to cpntribute a c t i v e l y 
to the solution of refugee problems, including humanitarian assistance to refugees. 
I t s f i n a n c i a l support for UraCK i n 1^83 would t o t a l |TIS 47 m i l l i o n . 

3« In South-East Asia, there were s t i l l some 200,000 refugees i n csunps; the 
hope of r e s e t t l i n g then i n another coiintry vías dirinisliiñg and the p o s s i b i l i t y of 
repatriation was not even i n s i i ^ h t . That had been ons of the major concerns of the 
АЗЕАЖ Foreign î'Ilnisters at their- 00 nf eren ce i n June l^QJ/'when they had appealed 
to the international coramunity for a favourable cohsidei>ation of resettlement offers 
to provide those refugees vdth a durable solution. 

4. In Au4'ust 1933> Ms Government had welcomed an iràtiative to convene a meeting 
of representatives of four P a c i f i c coiuitries, namely the United States, A u s t r a l i a , 
Canada and Japan, to seek a substantive solution to the problem. îhe unanimous 
feeling had been that e f f o r t s sîiculd be made to pi-omote repatriation as we l l as 
resettlement. The Japanese Government had offered to contribute•.'neariy h a l f of 
'OHlICR's assistance reqnireasnts f o r Indo-Chinese ref-ogees i n 1983 and had 
contributed to the Bataan Hefuge Processing Center i n the PMlippines, as part of 
the effort to promote resettlenjent by a l l e v i a t i n c the burden on the resettlement 
Goiantriea. 

5. V h i l c h i s delegation considered tl-iat vol'ontar^' repatriation was the raost 
desirable solution for both Canfoodian and laotian refugees, there had also been 
continuing ffieacures to accept гоГияеее for resettlement i n Japan. ï t regretted 
that no durable solution had been found for tlie Vietnamese refugees ether than 
rssettlement i n t h i r d countries. At tha previous session of the Executive Comittes, 
hJ.s delegation had suggested the concept of an "Orderly Repatriation Pra^ramme" 
whicli, i t hopea, would meet w i t h wiuer support aiivi s. response from the 
Vietnamese Govemsient. 

6. The Government of Japan vfould contirme to support the Orderly Departure 
Ргойгашпе, under which moro than 3 0 , 0 0 0 VietnaTiese had l e f t t h a i r country and 
which constituted an outlet for 1эса1 e x i t , but had reservations regarding' the vray 
i n which the Рго^гашше v?as atbninistered. . . . 

7 . With regard to the threü million refugees of Afghan orif-in i n Pakistan, his 
Governnent confirmed that i t vio".ld continus to a s s i s t them and paid tx'ibute to the 
Government and-people of Pa^u.Btan f o r the humanitaaáan ef f o r t s they vrere making. 

0 . - I t was an obligation of the international community.to extend assistance to ; 
the f i v e m i l l i o n refugees emd displaced persons i n A f r i c a , and h i s Government vias 
prepared to play i t s part i n a s s i s t i n g developing countries- to shoulder the heavy 
burden Caused by mass movemonts of people. liLs. delegation recognized the role of 



А/АС.96/SR.354 
page 3 

the f i r s t International Conference on Assistance to Refugees i n A f r i c a (iCARA l ) 
i n promoting awareness i n the international conimunity and hoped that ICARA II> which 
was scheduled for July 1984, would be able to i d e n t i f y prescriptions for durable 
solutions, including repatriation and l o c a l integration. His Government had 
contributed $ÜS 20 million to ICARA I , followed by ^US 3 million i n 1982 and 
$ÏÏS 4.1 m i l l i o n i n 1983. 

9. His delegation f e l t that UÎTHCR's role regarding the nevi aspect of i t s 
assistance a c t i v i t i e s , namely "ref-ugee aid and development", should be that of a 
c a t a l y s t . 

10. As for the domestic aspect of the e f f o r t s made to find a solution to the 
problem of the asylumrseekers disembarlcing i n Japan, his Government had established 
the International Refugee Assistance Centre to f a c i l i t a t e l o c a l settlement-and-• — 
self-support. I t was close to a decision to r a i s e the resettlement target from 
5,000 to 5,000 persons. 

11. His delegation supported the p r i n c i p l e s contained i n the recommendations made 
by the Administrative Management Service and submitted i n February 1983 regarding 
the delegation of authority, decentralization of power and open access to 
information and would observe closely the follow-up imdertaken by UNHCR to 
implement them. I t welcomed the reduction i n the proposed budget requirements 
for 1 984 , r e f l e c t i n g the subsiding пшпетхса! trend i n the world refugee situation, 
and wished to underscore the necessity of adjusting the scale of administrative 
management and services through the redeplojTnent and reorganization of existing 
resources. 

12 . I t was to be hoped that the members of the international community would 
reinforce t h e i r concerted ef f o r t s to avert continuing outflovis of refugees, which 
resulted i n enormous burdens on other States. His Government c a l l e d upon the 
refugee-producing countries, therefore, to remove the so-cailed "root causes" 
and stem those outflov;s and also create viable surroundings f o r possible 
voluntary r e p a t r i a t i o n . 

13 . Japan would continue to work towards the.realization of durable solutions and 
hoped that the current session.01 the Executive Committee would give concrete 
impetus to that objective. 

1 4 . I-h.'. BEESLEY (Canada) said that, while there had been no new major refugee 
c r i s e s i n the past year, a stalemate seemed to have occurred with respect to the 
current status of each of the refugee c r i s e s of the previous four to f i v e years, 
and l a s t i n g solutions seemed no closer, although i t was apparent from the 
High Commissioner's statement that ШШСй was making a concentrated effort to f i n d 
such solutions. His Government intended to continue i t s support for the . 
High Commissioner and to that end, make sustained efforts to address the root 
causes of refugee situations, and engage i n j o i n t action vrith other Governments 
i n the face of p a r t i c u l a r s i t u a t i o n s . Support for the High Commissioner's 
objectives required creative and f l e x i b l e use of the capacity for refugee 
settlement, and continued f i n a n c i a l support of 1Ш1СГ{ and the other organizations 
concerned. 

15 . Looking back over the l a s t few sessions of the Executive Committee, he 
observed that, from 1978 to 1980, the focus had been on the major c r i s e s of the 
South-East Asian refugees, Mghanistan, Central jimeri a and i l f r i c a . In 1981 
and 1982 however, attention had s h i f t e d to the effectiveness of the 
High Commissioner's Office which v;as going through a rapid and painful period 



А/АС.96/SR.554 

of growth and t r a n s i t i o n . I t was generally rocognized that UfTHCR had implemented 
fundamental changes i n areas as diverse as organizational structure, management, 
the flew of informait!on and f i e l d operations. Those changes, and the more active 
relationship between UMHCR and i t s Executive Committee, had been most лгеХсоте and 
there were some indications that they had already led to positive r e s u l t s . I t was 
his Government's view that the time had cone to focus attention on the enormous 
task which s t i l l remained, tl:irough the encouragement of repat r i a t i o n , f a c i l i t a t i o n 
of l o c a l integration i n countries of asylum, resettlement i n t h i r d countries and 
ensuring that t r a d i t i o n a l development assistance lessened the impact of refugee 
situ a t i o n s . 

1 6 . In recent years i t had become clea.r tliat refugee protection was the 
sine qua non of a l l the endeavours to a s s i s t refugees. The Sub-Committee of the 
lifhole on International Protection had been dealing with the d i f f i c u l t issues of the 
impact of unfounded claims to refugee status, the rescue of asylum-seekers at 
sea and the prevention of m i l i t a r y attacks on refugee camps, a problem that should 
have been taken up by other organs of the United Nations system. However, i t would 
be unthinkable that the Executive Committee should l e t that tragic problem go 
unaddressed; work on the subject must continue. 

17 . I t was clear from the Note on international protection (A/AC .96/625) that 
IMIîGR continued to emphasize the promotion of various leg a l instruinents for the 
protection of refugees i n two ways г by encouraging broader adherence to the 
existing instruments and by promoting the d.evelopment of new measures to f i l l 
gaps i n the international l e g a l regime. His delegation wished to pay tribute, 
i n that regard, to the creative role played by the International Institu.te of 
Hijmanitarian Law. While the emphasis on l e g a l remedies to protection problems 
was correct, however, i t was no longer enough. The future challenge to those 
concerned with refugee protection x/ould be to i d e n t i f y and protect the genuine 
refugees among the millions of people motivated by economic conditions to seek 
t h e i r fortune elsewhere. 

18. That issue, which was a global phenom.enon, posed an administrative and l e g a l 
challenge of immense complexity, for refugee protection i n the years to come. lEHICR 
viould have to be even more active i n providing new, f l e x i b l e and imaginative 
protection techniques for refugees at the f i e l d l e v e l . 

1 9 . The High Commissioner had given invaluable support to Cana,da's annual refugee 
intake planning exercise and was providing similar advice to other Governments.. I t 
was to be hoped that that would lead to a more active co-ordination role by IWHCR 
which would ensure that scarce resettlement opportunities vrere put to optimum use. 
In that connection, a valuable contribution had been made by Canada's churches 
and non-governmental organizations i n sponsoring the admission of refugees to the 
countryI i n 1992 , 4J ООО extra refugees, over and above the Government quota had been 
r e s e t t l e d i n Canada thanks to such private e f f o r t s . 

2 0 . His delegation subscribed to the idea that refugees who had been integrated 
or repatriated should have the opportunitjr to build upon the assistance given to 
.them once the role of UNHCR had ceased. The linkagres between r e l i e f and • 
development were thus important to prevent the recurrence of refugee m.ovoraents 
and to a l l e v i a t e the burden imposed on l o c a l populations by additional refugees. 
I t was, however, an i l l u s i o n to think that the international community could buy 
i t s viay out of refugee px-obleras; only the concerted p o l i t i c a l w i l l of concerned 
Governments vrould lead to l a s t i n g solutions. 



А/АС.96/ЗЙ.354 
page 5 

21, In addressing refugee problems, i t was important that UNHCR should delect the 
right l e v e l of assistance and the right technological inputs and find an 
appropriate balance between the refugees and the l o c a l community. His délégation 
fully.supported UNHCR«8 e f f o r t s at improving programme delivery and li m i t i n g 
implementation setbacks. Voluntary repatj^iation to Ethiopia and Uganda and 
successful l o c a l integration projects i n Sudan, Tanzania and Zaire had been 
tangible examples of constructive development, ' 

^^è,' I n 1984;,,j;the seconiálrsiernational Conference on Assistance to Refugee!'In 
Africa (ICA^A I I ) would provide an opportunity tç Include refugees In the context 
of the broader development e f f o r t s of the African S t a t e s , . The development of 
p o l i t i c a l understandings could lead to the prevention of further teaes exoduses, 
and his delegation was hopeful that the conference would produce examples of the 
integration of r e l i e f assistance and development aid which could be reproduced i n 
other parts of the world,' , 

23• I n Latin America, attempts to enable refugees to return to a погш! l i f e 
through integration Into a g r i c u l t u r a l settlements and urban areas were encouraging, 
deepite the problem of protecting them. Assistance a c t i v i t i e s should bé aimed at 
providing them with the means to reduce t h e i r dependence on r e l i e f , 

24, Hie Government supported the I n i t i a t i v e s undertaken by Pakistan, UNHCR, the 
World Bank and ILQ to generate economic a c t i v i t y within the Afghan refugee 
population. In South-East Asia, resettlement remained a key component i n solving 
the Indochinese refugee problem and,' to date, Canada had re s e t t l e d 85,000 refugees, 

•25i» I n a l l the major c r i s e s and the wide range of smaller refugee s i t u a t i o n s , the 
Executive Committee had to concentrate i t s attention on the effectiveness of the 
teeWniques arjd methods employed i n the search for solutions. E f f e c t i v e programm.e ; 
delivery, did not r e s t on the .expression of good intentions aloné, and-.his • 
Goverrti^nt supported UNHCR measures aimed'at r a t i o n a l i z i n g and improving personnel 
p o l i c i e s ; the need for progressive and enlightened personnel practices could not be 
over-stressed, • 

26. His Government believed that i t was time to s h i f t the main focus of the 
Executive Committee's attention away from the internal organization and operations 
of the Office of the High Commissioner to the major refugee s i t u a t i o n s that had ^ ; 
persisted for so long; i t should lend energetic support to the e f f o r t s of the ' ̂ , 
High Commissioner to find solutions to those problems. ' 

27. Mr. ONKELINX (Beigium) said that the refugee s i t u a t i o n throughout the world wa^. 
a source of serious concern to h i s country. While the decline In the number of 
crises"^ creating refugees and therefore i n the o v e r - a l l f i n a n c i a l resources required, 
by the High Commissioner was.gratifying, the c l e a r deterioration i n the refugee 
si t u a t i o n i n various parts of tbe-world was alarming. The role of UNHCR i n the 
protection of refugees was more important than ever: that protection could best ' 
be achieved by universal adherence to the 1951 Convention and 1967 Protocol, as wêïi 
as respect by the States for the obligations contained i n those instruments. 

28. The High Coramlssioner,had r i g h t l y said that i t was e s s e n t i a l to examine the 
fundamental aspects,of refugee s i t u a t i o n s , p a r t i c u l a r l y the causes of the problem 
and the need for Governments to r e f r a i n from causing refugee movements. There were , 
several reasons why the refugee s i t u a t i o n had deteriorated. Repeated mass 



A/AC.96/SR.354 
page б 

exoduses i n the previous decade had coincided with the onset of the world economic 
c r i s i s and points of tension had pro l i f e r a t e d . In the l i g h t of the economic c r i s i s , 
public opinion tended to Include refugees i n the general category of foreigners, 
without taking t h e i r p a r t i c u l a r s i t u a t i o n into account. Moreover, the 
pro l i f e r a t i o n of c l e a r l y unfounded applications for asylum, so detrimental to the 
cause of refugees, was dismaying and could lead to what had been c a l l e d "deterrent 
practices" by countries having to cope with large numbers of applications for 
asylum. 

29. I t was regrettable that i t had not yet proved possible to draft an agreement 
to condemn m i l i t a r y attacks on refugee camps with a balance between the 
humanitarian nature that such camps should r e t a i n and the obligation bo r e f r a i n 
from belligerent acts against them. Firm and objective rules should be 
established to prohibit any mil i t a r y a c t i v i t y based on refugee camps or settlement 
areas as well as any mil i t a r y action against them. The p o l i t i c a l and 
humanitarian aspects of those problems could not be separated, and h i s delegation 
would readily endorse any appeal by the Executive Committee to the General Assembly 
on that i s s u e . 

30. Hie worsening s i t u a t i o n with regard to the protection of refugees increased 
the d i f f i c u l t y of finding durable solutions: that was a l l the more regrettable at 
a time when a qu a l i t a t i v e change i n forms of assistance to refugees might have been 
hoped for. Emphasis should gradually have shifted from emergency operations towards 
l a s t i n g solutions. The note by the meeting of Experts on Refugee Aid and Development 
(A/AC.96/627) should be taken as a s t a r t i n g point by the Executive Committee for 
more systematic action involving Governments and interested international 
organizations. A consolidated document on co-ordination among the International 
I n s t i t u t i o n s and non-governmental organizations, p a r t i c u l a r l y I n the f i e l d of 
integration I n the country of asylum, would be most useful. 

31. The forthcoming second International Conference on Assistance to Refugees I n 
Africa (ICARA I I ) would also be an occasion for emphasizing the search for durable 
solutions to refugee flows i n A f r i c a . That was p a r t i c u l a r l y important i n that the 
proportion of the funds earmarked for that purpose was declining, while the number 
of refugees was continuing to Increase, A regional and subreglonal approach was 
pa r t i c u l a r l y valuable. I n that I t could take account of the s p e c i f i c nature of 
problems which were not necessarily the same throughout the world, as the Belgian 
Minister for Foreign A f f a i r s had recently stressed at the General Assembly. He 
had also pointed out that the conference could represent an opportunity for a l l 
concerned to review t h e i r a c t i v i t i e s i n order to incorporate the integration of 
refugees and t h e i r economic participation within the general development plan of 
the countries of reception. He had also affirmed h i s delegation's Intention of 
taking an active part I n ICARA I I and I t s follow-up. 

32. His delegation welcomed the e f f o r t s made by the High Commissioner to Improve 
co-operation with members of the Executive Committee, es p e c i a l l y the provision of 
more precise and systematic Information to Governments. Meanwhile, the reports of 
the United Nations Board of Auditors and of ACABQ Indicated that UNHCR»s 
management and planning could be Improved s t i l l further; they would, no doubt, 
receive a l l due attention from the High Commissioner. 

33• There were some 35»ООО refugees l i v i n g In Belgium, to whom h i s Government was 
devoting Increasing resources, In addition to I t s contributions to UNHCR, In view 
of those expenditures and the extent of unemployment I n the country, h i s Government 
had been unable to set up new programmes for refugees, but I t had In no way limited 



A/AC.96/SH.354 
page 7 

i t s t r a d i t i o n a l policy of granting asylum and refugee status* However, the 
1,120 applications for asylum that had been approved i n 1982 represented only 
s l i g h t l y more than one-third of the t o t a l applications, which indicated the 
disturbing r i s e i n the numbsr of abusive and un j u s t i f i e d applicátioris. 

54. In addition to i t s d i r e c t contributions to UNHCR, his Government also contributed 
to the assistance provided by the European Communities and to various non-goyernmental 
organizations for s p e c i a l projects i n the food and medical f i e l d s In Africa and Asia. 
I t would continue to provide support for UNHCR, as a driving force i n international 
s o l i d a r i t y , i n i t s e f f o r t s to a l l e v i a t e one of the most pressing aspects of human 
d i s t r e s s . 

35. Mr. SADLEIR (Australia) said that his delegation agreed that the Office of the 
High Commissioner should try to develop a longer-terra view, while serving as a 
cat a l y s t and humanitarian intermediary i n the quest for a l a s t i n g solution to 
refugee problems. I t also agreed that there was a need to seek a balance i n sharing 
the burden of refugee problems. The High Commissioner had l a i d down a challenge 
for the Executive Committee by pointing out that, while i n 1970, some 63 per cent of 
the programme hsid.been geared to durable solutions, by 1961 that proportion had 
dropped to 26 per.cent. That alarming figure was indicative of a losing struggle 
even allowing for the enormous increase i n the number of refugees, and i t was up 
to both UNHCR and the member States to reverse the sit u a t i o n i n the shortest 
possible time. 

36. His country fa newly: elected Government had reaffirmed Australia's commitment to 
i t s obligations i n refugee matters and the Minister for Immigration and Ethnic 
A f f a i r s had recently stated that i t s strategies i n that connection were the 
following: to place greater s t r e s s on p o l i t i c a l solutions i n the countries of 
origin; to seek solutions such as voluntary repatriation and l o c a l integration, i n 
addition to resettlement; to pursue p o l i c i e s designed to reserve available refugee 
resettlement places for genuine refugees; to encourage countries of f i r s t refuge 
to give sanctuary to refugees; and to ensure broad international co-operation i n 
refugee resettlements 

37. While h i s country's commitment to the resettlement of refugees was not 
conditional on buoyant economic conditions., resettlement programmes had to be 
community-based since they depended on the understanding of the people of the 
receiving countries. In view of the d i v e r s i t y of backgrounds from which the 
Australian people derived, continuing public support for resettlement would depend 
on even more broadly-based programmes, than i n the past. Accordingly, his Government 
was increasing the volume of refugees from parts of the world such as Central and 
South America and the Middle East, and would give attention where necessary to 
other areas of turbulence. I t would, nevertheless, continue to give p r i o r i t y to 
resettlement from the region of which i t formed part, and about half the refugees 
i t intended to take during the current f i n a n c i a l year would thus come from Indo-China. 

58. His Government was concerned at the drop i n resettlement by cer t a i n countries 
with a long history of humanitarian response to refugee situations and hoped that 
i t s own ef f o r t s to take refugees from distant regions would lend fresh impetus to 
burden-sharing by the international community as a whole. I n that connection, h i s 
delegation was g r a t i f i e d to learn of Japan's increased intake of Indochinese 
refugees. 



A/AC.96/SR.554 
page 8 

39. In h i s Government's view, the raost serious root cause of mass flows of refugees 
was the vio l a t i o n of human rig h t s , and refugee problems would remain u n t i l such 
time as people were convinced that they could l i v e happy and useful l i v e s i n t h e i r 
countries of o r i g i n . In that connection, his country's Foreign Minister, i n a 
recent statement before the General Assembly, had urged the need to r e v i t a l i z e 
United Nations a c t i v i t y in defence of human rig h t s , and had emphasized that the 
prime r e s p o n s i b i l i t y for ensuring that human rights were not the f i r s t casualty 
of ecpnoraic .and p o l i t i c a l d i f f i c u l t y lay with Governments. 

40. In.reconsidering t r a d i t i o n a l approaches, i t was c l e a r that i t was necessary 
to s t r i v e more,,th^n ever to solve the abject plight of refugees, in addition to 
providing them with assistance and protection in t h e i r places of refuge. In that 
connection, despite some c r i t i c i s m of UNHCR's performance with regard to durable 
solutions i n the past, his delegation was pleased to note that there was evidence 
of decisive leadership by the High Commissioner and supported UNHCR's role 
especially/with regard to dialogue and as a humanitarian intermediary. 

41. The climate in the part of the world to which his country belonged was 
becoming increasingly favourable to durable solutions, and the concern and 
generosity of South-East Asian receiving States had made for a new.and.regional 
approach to the problem of Indo-'Ohinese refugees. An important s t a b i l i z i n g 
element was the viillingness of the-Government of Viet Nam bo apply orderly .•• • 
departure procedures.. : Furthermore, at a :песепЬ meeting of donor and rosettlement 
countries at Honolulu, the general view had emerged that the Indo-Chinese refugee 
issue was entering upon a new phase in which p o s s i b i l i t i e s for responses other 
.than resettlement were developing. When his .country's Minister for Immigration . 
and Ethnic A f f a i r s had subsequently reviewed matters with the South-East Asian 
Governments, the consensus had been that resettlement was not the only answer and 
that there was an urgent need for dialogue with source countries, notably Viet Nam, 
on matters such as the continued moratorium on disorderly departures, expansion • 
of the orderly departure programme and, most important of a l l voluntary 
re p a t r i a t i o n . 

42. I t had become quite evident that voluntary repatriation could be the best 
and most humane solution and that every e f f o r t should be made to create the 
conditions in which refugees could f e e l confident about returning to t h e i r 
homelands. As a second option, s e l f - s u f f i c i e n c y in place could be seen either 
as an intermediate step towards voluntary repatriation or as a solution i n i t s e l f . 
I f neither of those p o s s i b i l i t i e s was available, resettlement in third, countries 
was an appropriate response. Moreover, regulated opportunities for emigration 
.could offer a desirable al t e r n a t i v e to disorderly departures. 

43. There was need for public support and a demonstrated commitment of decision
makers to the further development of machinery to,deal with refugee.problems 
and, in that connection, he wished to pay tribute to the Intergovernmen1|al 
Committee pfi Migration, which provided an irreplaceable global network and the 
basic i n f r a s t r u c t u r a l support for the processing and movement of refugees. 

44•. His Government had a c t i v e l y supported the work undertaken with a view to 
creating the basis for durable solutions and, for that very reason, i t doybted 
the wisdom of the proposed abolition of the post of Regional Co-ordina^iii' for 
South-East Asia I A high-level capacity should be maintained i n the region, i f 
only on â temporary basis to promote the search for durable solutions. 



A/AC.96/SR.354 
page 9 

45. His Government, which was a major contributor to UNHCR assistance programmes 
and had rendered considerable assistance i n connection,with Afghanistan and 
Africa, shared the concern that had been expressed regarding the refugee problem 
in Africa and regarded the review of the s i t u a t i o n that was .to take place at 
ICARA I t as both necessary and timely. 

46. The High Commissioner was to be commended for the e f f o r t s he was making to 
safeguard the physical security of refugees, but the e x i s t i n g international; l e g a l 
principles and practice would have to be developed to meet the changing needs. 
In that connection, his delegation appealed to the countries that had not already 
done so to accede to the 1951 Convention r e l a t i n g to the Status of Refugees and 
the 1967 Protocol. I t would also l i k e to see wider participation i n the Executive 
Committee of a l l the countries concerned with refugee problems and assistance, 
with p a r t i c u l a r reference to developing countries of f i r s t refuge,, which should 
be placed in a position to represent t h e i r i n t e r e s t s i n that forum. 

47- In view of the a l l too evident gaps .in the legal regime for international 
protection, his Government favoured further examination of the concept.of 
temporary refuge and the development of principles designed to i n h i b i t or prevent 
attacks on refugee camps and settlements. I t also wished to express i t s support, 
for organizations such as the International I n s t i t u t e of Humanitarian Law, to 
which i t hoped to make a f i n a n c i a l contribution i n 1984. 

48. His delegation also welcomed the report of the Meeting of Experts on Refugee 
Aid and Development (A/AC.96/627) arid was pleased to note the High Commissioner's 
readiness to discuss l a t e r i n the session the issues raised i n that report. I n 
view of the limited time available to the Executive Committee, however, steps 
should be taken to ensure that those issues received attention during the coming 
year, 

49. Non-governmental organizations also made an invaluable contribution to refugee 
assistance, i n which connection he wished to draw attention to a recent proposal, 
made on behalf of the Refugee Council of Australia, for the formation at Geneva of 
an i n s t i t u t i o n to bè known as ''Refcare" - a proposal which the Refugee Council of 
the International Council of Voluntary Agencies was to sfcudy and pursue. 

50. L a s t l y , the Executive Committee's work on UNHÇR management policy and 
structure had attracted à helpful response from the High Commissioner which augured 
well for future co-operation on the subject between his Office and the Committee. 

51. Mr. ARNOLD (Federal Republic of Germany) said he hoped that, at i t s current 
session, the Executive Committee would continue to rel y on i t s a b i l i t y to ar r i v e at 
a consensus and would be guided by a humanitarian s p i r i t that took account of 
UNHCR's non-political mandate. 

52. His Government would continue to play an active role i n refugee matters and 
to adopt a broad approach to assistance i n that connection; i t s f i n a n c i a l 
contributions for the current year were l i k e l y to exceed those for 1982. However, 
while i t s commitment to contribute to UNHCR assistance programmes would be 
maintained, domestic economic pressures could not be overlooked when considering 
further measures i n the area of durable solutions. The European economic situ a t i o n 



A/AC.96/SR.354 
page 10 

also c a l l e d for carefu l handling of f i n a n c i a l assistance to m u l t i l a t e r a l 
organizations, and the standards by which h i s country was •bound also applied 
to i t s partners. In that connection, his Government strongly supported the 
European Economic Community's continued contribution to UNHCR assistance programmes. 

53. The ov e r - a l l number of refugees and l e v e l s of financing required to meet their 
needs had remained f a i r l y stable i n 1982 and early I 9 8 3 but, as was apparent from 
the documents before the E3çç,çutive Committee, the problems had not become any easie r . 
Physical protection continued to be important and h i s Government remained committed 
to the anti-piracy programme, i n the Gulf of Siam which, though limited, was à step 
i n the right direction. I t ; had., always taken ths view that m i l i t a r y attacks on 
refugee camps should be deaMa with on a broader basis and ге'еагаШ' the Schnyder 
report as timely i n i t s approaclh,. However, whether or not tWtîSneral Assembly 
adopted a declaration on the subject, i t was incumbent on the Executive Committee 
to meet i t s own humanitarian r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s . The paper that'-háá'been prepared 
might not come up to a l l expectations but, provided that i t conveyed the 
appropriate message, i t was worthy of adoption and the remaining d i f f i c u l t i e s 
should be ironed out. 

54- As for the restructuring of UNHCR administration and management policy, the 
proposals put forward i n document E/SC .2/15 - which had been accepted by the 
High Commissioner - could provide the guidelines for consideration of the subject 
at future sessions. His delagation understood that implementation of the proposals 
was already under way and would continue. I t remained convinced that any delagation 
of authority within UNHCR should be accompanied by a careful selection of people 
who were able to l i v e up to the high standards of r e s p o n s i b i l i t y required. 

55' I n connection with the various trends towards durable solutions, as revealed 
by^tbe refugee assistance programmes submitted by the High Commissioner, and with' 
the report on refugee aid and development (A/AC.96/637), he noted that some of the 
durable solutions involved dev.elppment aid measures. In that connection, h i s 
delegation .considered a carefvilly'f'theught-out approach to be ôsâential. His 
Government was among those th%.1j had dealt with the l o c a l integration of refugees 
by providing finance from development aid funds, partly through t r u s t funds 
granted to UNHCR and the International Labour Office- I t also-intended to make a 
generçus contribution to the f i r s t World Bank project concerning-refugees. I t 
was 00.that basis that i t took the view that UNHCR had a defi n i t e role to play iri 
introducing durable solutions that would involve development aid. I t was, however, 
only .pilot function and the understandable hesitation on the part of ;deyelopment 
i n s t i t u t i o n s should not constitute an insurmountable obstacle whenever de\^elopment 
aid "wa^ .deemed necessary;.. - I t ; would be better therefore i f , before any-declsions 
were taken, the report on refugee aid and development were discussed at the next 
informal meeting of the Executive Committee, and i f the High Commissioner set 
down i n writing his. views on^tha m^feter, with due regard for the fac t that the 
General Assembly had stressed th^aitneeüífbr.close interagency co-operation i n 
responding to large-scale refugee nvQveménts. 

56. Lastl:y,,,it was es s e n t i a l that UWHGRi'shoulditmonitor more closely the 
implementation of agreements that spgc^ifted; the ?rôsponsibilities of i t s 
operational partners. In that connection, he was pleased to note, from 
document E/SC.2/15/Add.l, that the High Commissioner had underlined t h e i r 
obligations with regard to f i n a n c i a l reporting and accounting and the preparation 
of evaluation reports, which were extremely important at a time of limited resources. 



A/AC.96/SR .554 
page i l 

57. I4r. PICTET (Switzerland) said that the c r i s i s of confidence facing the 
united Nations and threatening m u l t i l a t e r a l co-operation as a whole enhanced 
the importance of the few obviously effective organs such as UHHCR: i t was 
necessary to continue to demonstrate that i f the United Nations was not i n a 
position to keep the peace and remove the causes of international disputes, i t 
could at l e a s t a l l e v i a t e the human suffering r e s u l t i n g from them. I t \ras 
therefore more important than ever to respect the humanitarian, impartial and . 
a p o l i t i c a l nature of UNHCR. 

5 8 . The High Commissioner's report (A/AC .96/620) contained some positive 
elements, p a r t u l a r l y the o v e r a l l s t a b i l i z a t i o n , for the third consecutive year, 
of the t o t a l пгзтЪег of refugees and the decline i n t h e i r numbers i n Europe.and 
South-East Asia, r e s u l t i n g i n a l i g h t e r finэлcial burden on UHHCR and the , 
contributing countries. However, sources of i n s t a b i l i t y continued to pr o l i f e r a t e 
ânâ to give r i s e to population movements having disastrous human ef f e c t s : i t was 
dismaying that, despite recent i n i t i a t i v e s , no progress had yet been made towards 
averting such tragedies by better collaboration among the States. The persistence 
of i n j u s t i c e , gross v i o l a t i o n s of human r i g h t s , segregationist p o l i c i e s and armed 
c o n f l i c t s prevented the e a r l i e r refugee flows from being reabsorbed, and thus, 
i n the absence of durable ,solutions, camps, under UNHCR r e s p o n s i b i l i t y continued 
to e x i s t i n almost a l l . the c o n t i n e n t s . . ' 

5 9 . P r e c i s e l y because of the impartial nature of i t s a c t i v i t i e s , UNHCR was often 
one of the few international organizations represented i n .the f i e l d and i n contact 
with a l l the parties concerned - the refugees and the authorities of the countries 
of origin and of reception. I t was therefore i n an exceptional position to 
encourage Governments to a s s i s t refugees to return v o l u n t a r i l y to th e i r homes. 
In order to carry out i t s work of protection or assistance, i t must obviously 
have free access at a l l times .to the refugee camps for which i t was responsible. 
I t s work i n the f i e l d of assistance,'hoveVer, depended on the ef f e c t i v e 
accomplishment of i t s central function of protection. His country intended, 
therefore, strongly to support UNHCR i n . i t s vrork so as to ensure respect for the 
1951 Convention and the I 9 6 7 Protocol: respect by States for the i r international 
obligations was the necessary precondition for improving the sit u a t i o n of refugees 
throughout the world. By t i r e l e s s l y defending the inalieneible rights of refugees 
as set^forth i n the Convention, UNHCR was only f u l f i l l i n g i t s humanitarian 
mandate,.even i f there were some parties which sought to use i t s - a c t i o n for 
p o l i t i c a l purposes that were e n t i r e l y a l i e n to i t . . 

60. UNHCR had to carry out i t s work of protection i n p a r t i c u l a r l y d i f f i c u l t ^ 
conditions. The countries of reception, including some сош!tries of resettlement, 
were encountering increasing d i f f i c u l t i e s which should not, hoviever, be emphasized 
to the extent of overlooking the primary r e s p o n s i b i l i t y of the countries which 
Viere at the ori g i n of refugee movements. Those d i f f i c u l t i e s would be the more 
e a s i l y overcome i f there were a better understanding of UHHCR's mission, and a 
general conviction that the eff o r t s were broadly shared by the international 
community. I n h i s country, as i n others, public opinion was a very important 
factor i n that connection, and he wished to st r e s s h i s delegation's i n t e r e s t i n 
the programme to combat piracy i n the China Sea, and i n the vrork on the subject of 
attacks against refugee camps, p a r t i c u l a r l y Mr. Schnyder's report (EC/SCP/25) . 
On the basis of that report, the Executive Committee should define a set of 
principles to protect refugees against such attacks and prevent t h e i r recurrence. 



A/AC.96/SR.554 
page 12 

61. As for assistance progranmes, i t was noteworthy that ШШСН had recently 
been able to devote a larger part of i t s budget to durable solutions. The 
recent meeting of experts had made i t possible to drav; up some principles for 
the implementation of durable solutions, as well as the l i n k s bet\-reen refugee 
aid and development. I n that connection, h i s Government was p a r t i c u l a r l y 
interested i n the p i l o t l o c a l integration project currently being implemented 
i n Pakistan. I t intended to make a substantial contribution to the financing 
of that project and hoped that many other Governments would follow s u i t . The 
voluntary repatriation of refugees, vrhile s t i l l at too modest a l e v e l , was 
encouraging and i t was to be hoped that s i m i l a r operations could soon be 
undertaken i n other parts of the world. 

62. UNHCR depended on the collaboration of the other organizations of the 
United Nations system, the International Committee of the Red Cross, the 
Intergovernmental Committee for Migration and the non-governmental organizations, 
e s p e c i a l l y when i t was not operational. I t should therefore ensure that those 
partners were c l o s e l y linked with a l l the stages of i t s programmes and that the 
dis t r i b u t i o n of tasks was c l e a r l y defined at the outset of every operation. 

65. The report of the United Nations Administrative Management Service indicated 
that UNHCR should be s u f f i c i e n t l y f l e x i b l e i n i t s structure to adapt to constantly 
changing situations, while respecting c e r t a i n basic p r i n c i p l e s to ensure i t s 
e f f i c i e n c y . That report had provided a basis for the High Commissioner's 
comments to the Executive Committee and for the members of the Executive Committee 
who had put forward what they considered to be the e s s e n t i a l administration and 
management points. The High Commissioner had r i g h t l y stressed that the proposals 
made by the members of the Executive Committee called for continuing action. 

64. bastly, the number of requests for asylxim i n Switzerland had r i s e n 
considerably. Swiss law guaranteed to asylum-seekers the right to be heard by 
the competent Federal authority, and the review of the law on asylum, currently 
\mder way, would make i t possible to accelerate that' procedure, p a r t i c u l a r l y 
vrith regard to c l e a r l y unfounded cases, without r e s t r i c t i n g the rights of the 
applicants. His Government continued to believe that the granting of asylum 
vras more than a simple t r a d i t i o n and was, i n f a c t , the expression of the Swiss 
concept of l i b e r t y . At the international l e v e l , h i s Government had, i n 1982 
and again injl^S?» increased i t s f i n a n c i a l contributions not only to UNHCR's 
regular budget but also to various s p e c i a l programmes: UNHCR could continue 
to r e l y on the active support of Switzerland for i t s humanitarian work 
throughout the world. 

The meeting rose at 5»1Q P«tn» 


